
FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA -- 1/9/2024 at 9:30 AM 
1504 3rd Ave Rock Island, IL – County Building, Third Floor Chambers 

I. Roll Call:

II. Old Business:  Executive Committee minutes from December 12, 2023* pg 2

III. Claims:*
Niabi Zoo Fund claims @ $127,859.11 pg 16 
DFCI Fund claims @ $3,271.95 pg 32

Forest Preserve General Fund claims @ $80,832.21 pg 6 
Liability Fund claims @ $9,857.88 pg 31 
Treasurer’s Disbursements $1,623.47 pg 33

Claims and Treasurer’s Disbursements totaling $223,444.62 

IV. Transfers:
Consider Transfers of Appropriations* pg 34

V. Resolutions:
Consider a resolution regarding the semi-annual review of closed session minutes* pg 36
Consider a resolution regarding Niabi Zoo Scott County Regional Development Authority Grant Appropriations* pg 38
Consider a resolution regarding Niabi Zoo Receipt of Grant Funds-Woodward Community Grant Fund* pg 39
Consider a resolution regarding Liability Fund Additional Appropriations* pg 40
Consider a resolution regarding Certification of the QCCVB DBA Visit Quad Cities* pg 41

VI. Ordinances:
No Ordinances to consider this month

VII. Public comment:

VIII   Other Business: 
        Consider 2024 user fees for the District* pg 42 

Consider Paymerang Master Services Agreement* pg 44
Other business as needed 

IX. Reports:   Approval of all routine reports:
District Budget Performance Report* pg 62
April Palmer – Auditor’s Reports* pg 81
Mike Petersen - Illiniwek report* pg 90
Lee Jackson – Niabi Zoo report* pg 94

Nick Camlin – Treasurer’s Report* pg 76
Todd Collins pg 87 & Jay Verstraete pg 89  – Indian Bluff Reports* 
Ben Mills – Loud Thunder report* pg 91
Jeff Craver – Director’s report* pg 106

The Forest Preserve Executive Committee may enter a Closed Session for the following: 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) – The appointment employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or 
legal counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against legal counsel for 
the public body to determine its validity.  
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning 
salary schedules for one or more classes of employees. 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (5)-Discussion of the purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held for the purpose of 
discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired. 
* items are in members’ packets

The next meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee will be held at Rock Island County Building,
Rock Island, Illinois on Tuesday, February 13th, 2024 at 9:30 AM. 

001



December 12, 2023 Page 1 

FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
DECEMBER 12, 2023 

 
                  
PRESENT: Committee members –L. Moreno, D. Mielke, E. Sowards, R. Simmer, C. Layer. 
 
ABSENT: K. Swanson, J. Woods. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Jeff Craver, District Director; Mike Petersen, Illiniwek Ranger; Lee Jackson, 
Niabi Zoo Director; Ben Mills, Loud Thunder Ranger; April Palmer, Auditor; Nick Camlin, 
Treasurer. 
 
Dr. Moreno called the monthly meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee to order 
at 9:35 AM on Tuesday, December 12, 2023, in the 3rd floor chambers of the Rock Island 
County Building, Rock Island, Illinois. 
 
L. Moreno, E. Sowards, R. Simmer, C. Layer, D. Mielke. 
TOTAL PRESENT 5 
K. Swanson, J. Woods  
TOTAL ABSENT 2 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion approving the November Committee meeting. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Mielke moved to approve the November Committee meeting minutes. Ms. 
Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in the 
amount of $1,039,296.08. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in the 
amount of $1,039,296.08. Mr. Layer seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the transfers of appropriation. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Sowards moved to approve the transfers of appropriation. Mr. Mielke seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the resolutions regarding the Designation of Banks 
or Other Depositories. 
 

002



December 12, 2023 Page 2 

MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the resolutions regarding the Designation of Banks or 
Other Depositories. Mr. Mielke seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno stated that there was a typo on the Illiniwek Recreation Trail Grant Resolution. 
There is a handout that shows the correction. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that on the corrected resolution there is an additional $30,000.00. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the corrected resolution regarding Illiniwek 
Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the corrected resolution regarding Illiniwek 
Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations. Mr. Layer seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the resolutions regarding Niabi Zoo Fund Prairie 
Dog Grant Appropriations, Niabi Zoo Fund African Painted Dog Grant Appropriations, Niabi 
Zoo Improvements ARPA Grant Appropriation. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the resolutions regarding Niabi Zoo Fund Prairie Dog 
Grant Appropriations, Niabi Zoo Fund African Painted Dog Grant Appropriations, Niabi Zoo 
Improvements ARPA Grant Appropriation. Mr. Layer seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno made three calls for public comment. There was no request for public comment. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the 2024 regular meeting dates and holidays. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Mielke moved to approve the 2024 regular meeting dates and holidays. Ms. 
Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve Mr. Jeffrey Craver, Director, as the District’s FOIA 
Officer for calendar year 2024. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve Mr. Jeffrey Craver, Director, as the District’s FOIA 
Officer for calendar year 2024. Mr. Layer seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the Holiday Policy. 

003



December 12, 2023 Page 3 

 
MOTION: Mr. Mielke moved to approve the Holiday Policy. Ms. Sowards seconded the 
motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the Vacation and Other Leaves Policy Other than 
PLAWA. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the Vacation and Other Leaves Policy Other than 
PLAWA. Mr. Layer seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that there were a few alterations made from what was in the packet during 
the course of going through the policy with the Civil Division and County HR Office. January 
first the Paid Leave for All Workers Act goes into effect. There are some changes here to the 
District’s policy. Since we provide an ample enough amount of leave to employees, we’re 
making some minor changes. Currently, the District is still on an accrual basis. This will take 
us off an accrual basis, and create an earned vacation bank. Those who already have eligible 
time and accrual will have them combined. Part of the Paid Leave for All Workers Act is having 
forty hours of paid leave to use for whatever purpose the employee chooses. This should 
satisfy the requirements for the District’s non-union full time employees. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the changes to the Regular Part-Time and 
Temporary Employee Pay Policy. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the changes to the Regular Part-Time and 
Temporary Employee Pay Policy. Mr. Layer seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the Paid Leave for All Workers Policy. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Mielke moved to approve the Paid Leave for All Workers Policy. Ms. Sowards 
seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that this policy is because of the Paid Leave for All Workers Act that will go 
into effect on January first. This policy follows the statute. For every forty hours worked an 
employee gets one hour of paid leave. This provides the procedure for how and when 
employees who do not fall under the previous policy or the union contract may use the paid 
leave. There was a little bit of tweaking since the packet was provided. Everyone should have 
a copy of that, and it’s highlighted. The District is trying to mirror the County’s policy so that 
things are a little easier for HR and Payroll. 
 
Dr. Simmer asked if this policy is the same as the County’s. 

004



December 12, 2023 Page 4 

 
Mr. Craver answered that it is very similar, but not exact.  
 
Dr. Moreno asked if anyone had any questions on the staff reports provided in the packet. 
 
There were no questions. 
 
Dr. Moreno asked staff if there was anything they needed to bring to the attention of the 
Committee. 
 
Mr. Petersen stated that FORC [Friends of Off Road Cycling] have requested to use Illiniwek 
for a day of races on Saturday, May 4th. They have had events at Illiniwek before, and were 
very clean and good guests. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that this would be included with the packet for the Commission meeting, and 
unless there is objection from Committee, it will be approved with the routine reports from 
department heads. 
 
There was no objection to FORC’s request. 
 
Ms. Palmer informed the Committee that the Audit will be presented at the Commission 
meeting. A copy of the final draft of the audit should be emailed to them by Friday. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the routine reports of the District Department heads. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Layer moved to approve the routine reports of the District Department heads. 
Dr. Simmer seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called the meeting adjourned at 9:50 AM. 
 
Submitted by:  
Cassie Sullivan 
Forest Preserve Administrative Assistant 

005



006



007



008



009



010



011



012



013



014



015



016



017



018



019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



 Resolution  
 Rock Island County Forest Preserve District 
 Re: Open Meetings Act Review of Minutes of a Meeting Lawfully Closed  
 

WHEREAS, the Rock Island County Forest Preserve Commission strictly adheres to all 
provisions of the Open Meetings Act as defined in 5 ILCS 120; and 
 

WHEREAS, 5 ILCS 120/2.06(c), calls for periodic review of minutes of meetings lawfully 
closed to determine if the need for confidentiality still exists as to all or part of these minutes or 
that the minutes or portions therefor no longer require confidential treatment and are available 
for public inspection; and 
 

WHEREAS, during regular committee meetings held during the month of January, 2023; 
Rock Island County Forest Preserve has reviewed minutes of closed meetings for all previously 
held closed sessions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following meeting minutes have been 
determined to contain matters where the need for confidentiality still exists: 
 

Date of Meeting     Reason for Closed Session 
 08-08-1986      Personnel 
 12-05-1986      Personnel 
 02-08-1991      Personnel & Potential Liability 
 07-10-1992      Personnel 
 02-05-1993      Investments contracts 
 05-07-1993      Personnel 
 08-15-1995      Personnel 
 08-05-2005      Litigation 
 09-30-2010      Personnel 
 10-08-2010      Personnel 
 12-03-2010      Personnel 
 03-04-2011      Personnel 
 04-05-2012      Personnel 
 06-05-2012      Personnel 
 06-07-2012      Personnel 
 06-08-2012      Personnel 
 06-27-2012      Personnel 
 06-28-2012      Personnel 
 10-15-2012      Litigation & Personnel 
 07-11-2013      Personnel 
 09-12-2013      Litigation 
 11-14-2013      Litigation & Personnel 
 12-12-2013      Litigation & Personnel 
 01-16-2014      Litigation 
 11-13-2014      Personnel 
 02-11-2015      Personnel 

04-16-2015      Personnel 
10-14-2015      Personnel 
11-10-2015      Personnel 
02-16-2016      Potential Litigation 
03-17-2016      Personnel 
04-12-2016      Personnel 

036



06-15-2016      Litigation 
01-10-2017      Litigation 
04-11-2017      Litigation 

 01-09-2018      Personnel 
 11-13-2018      Personnel & Land Acquisition 
 02-11-2020      Personnel 
 12-15-2020      Litigation 
 07-13-2021      Land Acquisition 
 07-20-2021      Land Acquisition 
 10-13-2021      Negotiations 
 01-11-2023      Land Acquisition 
 06-13-2023      Land Acquisition 
  

This Resolution to become effective immediately after passage.  Minutes of those meetings 
determined to be made available for public inspection will be released as per the Open Meetings 
Act 5 ILCS 120/2.06(b). 
 
 DONE IN OPEN MEETING THIS 16th DAY OF JANUARY, 2024 
 
 
 
                                                                                                              
Kai Swanson       Karen Kinney 
President, Rock Island County     Secretary, Rock Island County 
Forest Preserve Commission    Forest Preserve Commission 

037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



 Report to Forest Preserve Committee 
 

 Name of Park ___Indian Bluff 
 For the Month of _December 

 
  
 
The month of December was busy at the bluff with the start of the construction projects on holes 6 and 
18… 
 
Grounds/Building Maintenance performed 
 

• Cutback no mow and over grown areas of the park 
• Removed fountain from irrigation pond 
•  Began grinding reel and bed knife stock 
• Cleaned and organized our storage facilities to make way for equipment service and storage 
• Installed new lift in maintenance building 
• Brought in all golf accessories from the course 

 
Equipment repairs and/or project performed 

• Began grinding all of our reel units 

• Painted and sealed ornamental benches 

• Began refurbishing our stock of benches, tee markers and ball washers 

 

Course/General facility conditions- Course closed for the season 

Incidents- None 

Accidents reports- None 

Weather conditions- frozen 

Park/Capital Improvement Projects-  

Other misc. notes Upcoming Items—  The projects on 6 and 18 should be completed as the weather 

permits.. 

 
This report was prepared by: Jay Verstraete    Date: 1/3/2024 

089



  Report to Forest Preserve Committee 
 

  Name of Park    Illiniwek 
 

  For the Month of December 2023 
 

Grounds Maintenance — Staff finished grading the soil where the culvert extensions were installed at camp 
office.  Staff continued working on diamond 3 at Dorrance which included creating the transition between infield 
skin and the outfield grass.  At this transition staff used a curved 1”x6” using steaks in the ground to curve the 
1”x6” around and backfilled with soil on one side and ag lime on the infield side.  The remaining work on diamond 
3 will have to wait until spring when the field thaws and dries out.  Illiniwek purchased and installed 3 orange 
traffic barricades at the camp entrance road to prevent vehicles from driving through the campground.     
Building Maintenance Projects Performed – No building maintenance. 
Equipment repairs and/or projects performed— No equipment repairs this month.   
Trails/Course/General facility conditions— The forest trails were open most of the month but closed a few times 
due to rain.  Staff installed 11 informational signs on the north loop trail at Illiniwek.  The signs have information on 
them about mammals and birds found at Illiniwek.  
Vandalism report- No vandalism but 2 dumpsters have been filled in the campground with trash from individuals 
dumping their trash.    
Incidents— No incidents   
Accidents reports— No accidents to report this month. 
Weather conditions— Average 
Activities/Events/Outings held at park— No scheduled events this month.  
Items to be bid by Purchasing— No items to bid    
Upcoming Activities – Staff will be working on the Amôwa west trail, forest management activities as weather 
allows, and equipment maintenance as weather gets colder.  Construction is scheduled to begin on the public 
restroom at Illiniwek.  
Misc. The 2-bay swing for Dorrance was delivered along with the new rock climber for Illiniwek.  These will be 
installed in the spring unless weather cooperates and stays warm, then we will install in January.  Mic Holgerson 
submitted his findings report of the Amôwa West forest preserve botanical survey.  Staff took plenty of vacation 
time around the holidays to enjoy the season.       
 
 

This report was prepared by:    Mike Petersen         Date__1-03-2024________ 
 

090



091



092



093



Niabi Zoo report for December 2023 

Lee Jackson 

1/3/2024 

 
The Niabi Zoo management and staff continue to participate in and in many situations, serve in 
leadership roles in a wide variety of conservation and zoo management organizations and 
initiatives. The following are programs and partnerships currently in place. 

LEE JACKSON 

• Lee has accepted a position as scientific advisor for the AZA MANED WOLF SAFE (saving animals 
from extinction) program. My main responsibilities in the near term will be collecting data on 
what is known about Maned Wolves in Paraguay (the only range country where no studies on 
this species have been carried out). I will also be facilitating the organization of a Maned Wolf 
conservation symposium in Paraguay with governmental, private land owners, and NGOs in the 
region. This will include representatives mostly from Paraguay, but also from Brazil, Argentina, 
and Bolivia. 

• Lee serves as the captive management consultant for the endangered Pilar Tuco-Tuco 
(Ctenomys pilarensis). This program is led by the organization “Para La Tierra” based in 
Paraguay. 

• Lee is working with the university of Dubuque in partnership with Fundación Moises Burtoni to 
create a citizen science program to monitor water quality and aquatic life in the waters in and 
around the Mbaracayu Atlantic Forest Preserve, A United Nations World Heritage Site. The team 
will be working with and training University of Dubuque students, and students from the 
foundations vocational school for girls to carry out data collection. This will be the first program 
of its kind in the region. 

• Lee has completed training and been certified as an International Union for the Conservation of 
Nature (IUCN) assessor. IUCN is the global authority on determining the conservation status of 
all living things with the exception of microorganisms. These assessments are used worldwide to 
help set conservation priorities for both governments and NGOs. 

• Lee is working with the recruitment editor for special publications at the National Academy of 
Sciences to put together a special publication on the Chaco region of South America. 

• Several AZA organizations have been invited to participate in conservation projects we are 
leading in South America. At least one person from the California Academy of Sciences (AZA 
member) will be joining us there in 2024. Two other AZA facilities have shown interest. Our 
work and the invitation to participate will be its own presentation at our IZA meeting in 
February. 

• Lee is currently serving as board member for the AZA affiliated Zoo Conservation Outreach 
Group (ZCOG). ZCOG supports research and conservation initiatives in the Caribbean and Latin 
America, and currently manages several AZA field conservation initiatives through the AZA SAFE 
(saving animals from extinction) program. Lee is the only board member from a non-AZA facility. 

 
 
 
 
 

094



SCARLET BEHRENS, LEE JACKSON, TAMMY SCHMIDT 

• Learn2Serve Food Safety Management and Food Protection Manager Certification 
 

TAMMY SCHMIDT 

•  Awarded the ZAA Southern White Rhino Studbook Manager and Co-Program Coordinator 
•  AZA Pallas’s Cat Management Group 
•  Professional Member; ZAA 
•  Professional Fellow Member; AZA 
•  Member and Presenter of the ZAA Animal Welfare Committee 

      Webinar Moderator: Anthropomorphism and Animal Welfare 

                                            Social Media and Animal Welfare 

•  Member of the ZAA Animal Management Committee 
•  Presented a professional poster at 2023 ZAA Annual Conference 
•  Member and Presenter of IUCN Otter Specialist Group OZ Task Force 
•  Co-Chair IUCN Otter Specialist Group-OZ Task Force-Giant Otters 
• Facebook Administrator for Otter Keeper Workshop, IUCN Otter Training, IUCN OZ Specialist 

Group and OKWS Giant Otters 
• Instructor for AZA Otter Keeper Workshop  
• Board Member for Bridgeway Community Employment Services (special needs employment 

agency) 
• Zoo Nutrition Certification (AZA endorsed course) 
• Browse and Toxic Plants Certification (AZH/AZA endorsed course) 

 

 

JOEL VANDERBUSH 

• Joel recently traveled to Zimbabwe and designed a new conservation education program for our 
conservation partner, Painted Dog Research Trust (PDRT). He trained new education staff in the 
planning, operation and implementation of programs. He participated in field work collecting 
conservation data and tracking painted dogs. Joel leads the PDRT international planning 
committee.  

• Joel serves as the chair of the Quad Cities Earth Coalition (QCEC) and facilitates the plastic 
reduction campaign throughout the Quad Cities.  

• Joel participates on the planning committee for the Bi-State Conservation Action Network (Bi-
CAN) and is a frequent presenter and facilitator at Bi-CAN workshops.  

• At the Zoos and Aquariums Committing to Conservation (ZACC) conference in May 2024, Joel 
will be presenting “Impacting local and global conservation on a small budget” to an 
international audience representing both zoos and field conservationists. 

• The Environmental Education Association of Illinois (EEAI) selected Joel as a speaker to present 
“Bringing field-based research into education programs” at its state-wide conference on March 
23, 2024. 

 

095



 

ZOO TEAM 

• All Full Time Staff Red Cross: First Aid, AED, CPR Certified 
• One of the first zoos to achieve and receive the USDA-3 Year Certification Program 
• ZAA Member and Certified Institution 
• Niabi Zoo is Kulture City -Staff Certified  
• Niabi Zoo was awarded the Pollinator Pocket recognition by the IL State Extension 
• Niabi Zoo Animal Department is Large Animal Rescue Certified 
• Niabi Zoo was awarded the Bridgeway Community Employment Services-2023 Employee of the 

Year 
• Niabi is currently participating in over 18 AZA SSP and TAG Monitored programs. 
• Niabi is currently participating in 1 ZAA AMP program 
• Assistant Director and several keepers serve as Institutional Representatives for several  
SSP/TAG/Monitored/SAFE/AMP Programs;  

S.White Rhino: Kim M 
American Red Wolf: Jess LP 
Painted Dogs: TSchmidt 
Amur Leopard: TSchmidt 
Pallas’s Cat: TSchmidt/Jess LP 
Fennec Fox: Leanne P 
Wolf’s Guenon/Allen’s Swamp Monkey: Laura R 
BC Gibbon: TSchmidt 
Crocodile Monitor; LJackson 
Snow Leopard: TSchmidt 
Cape Porcupine: TSchmidt 
Rock Hyrax: TSchmidt 
Eurasian Eagle Owl: TSchmidt 
YB Duiker: TSchmidt 
BC Motmot: Tschmidt 
BW Colobus Monkey: LRiggins 
Golden headed lion Tamarins/Red handed Tamarin: TSchmidt 
 

• Niabi is a member of the Illinois Zoological Association. In February the Niabi Zoo will host the 
meeting of the Illinois Zoo Association. Representatives from all of the zoos in Illinois (with the 
exception of the Shedd Aquarium) have confirmed. 

• Niabi Zoo is a member of the Zoological Disaster Response, Rescue and Recovery Program 
(ZDR3) endorsed by both ZAA and AZA. 

• AZA requested to use a safety document authored at Niabi Zoo, in their accreditation standards 
material. We agreed the same day the request was made. 

• AZA Program Member of the Wildlife Confiscation Network 
 

096



• 38 AZA Zoos have worked with Niabi to move animals in and out according to transfer plans and 
recommendations for SSP/TAG Monitored/SAFE Programs in the last 7 years. 

California Science Center  Bloomington Zoo  Dallas World Aquarium 

Columbus Zoo    Oklahoma City Zoo  Toledo Zoo 

Brookfield Zoo    San Diego Zoo   Fresno’s Chaffee Zoo 

Pueblo Zoo    Cincinnati Zoo   Omaha’s Henry Doorly Zoo 

Cheyenne Mt. Zoo   Blank Park Zoo   World Bird Sanctuary 

ABQ BioPark    Bronx Zoo (WCS)  Chehaw Animal Park 

Zoo Atlanta    Mill Mountain Zoo  Dakota Zoo 

Potawatomi Zoo   St. Louis Zoo   Cleveland Zoo 

Los Angeles Zoo    Texas State Aquarium  Sedgwick Co Zoo 

Milwaukee Zoo    Tennessee Aquarium  Rosamond Gifford Zoo 

Santa Ana Zoo    Canada: Assiniboine Zoo and Granby Zoo 

Brandywine Zoo                                           UK: Thrigby Hall and Gardens Zoo   

Detroit Zoo                                                     Sea Life Aquarium                         Durham Life and Science    

Red River Zoo                                               

**some listed are both ZAA and AZA 

 

• 10 AZA Zoos have reached out/collaborated with Niabi concerning veterinary, conservation, 
nutrition, construction, and or general facilities management issues. 
 

January 2024 Animal Department Monthly Update 

 

Animal Department 

2.0 Fennec Fox Kits have received their first vaccines, both doing great! 

1.1 Cape Porcupine porcupettes doing well, we will sex and give first vaccines in a few weeks 

Sourced Goat Carcass and Deer Carcass Parts for new carcass feeding for American Red Wolves and 
Painted Dogs in 2024 

Concluded 2023 Season with 18 Safety Drills including a final Venomous Drill last week 

Hosted 2-3 Rhino Encounters over the holidays 

Prairie Dog Glazing finally arrived and is in the process of installation. 

097



 

Enrichment Volunteer Hours; (NEST and New Perspectives) 41.75 hours 

 

Conservation, Education & Development  
 
Education/Events 

• Virtual Zoo 
o 12/12 – African Primates - Brightwheel (Georgia) = 40 participants. Fee: $150 
o 12/20 – Rhino – Shortcut (New York) = 45 participants. Fee: $150 

• Dine with Santa Paws 
o 12/16 – Breakfast event cancelled due to low registration 
o 12/17 – Brunch = 52 guests = $1335 

Development 

• 12/19 – submitted SCRA grant report which prompted release of funds for reimbursement   
• 12/30 – made on-line donor page for Bears 

Institutional Development - 2023 December 
Designation ZDonor# Zoo FDonor# Foundation Donors Amount 
General Donation 2 $5,030.00 7 $450.00 8 $5,480.00  
Adopt 7 $350.00     7 $350.00  
Bears 1 $65.00     1 $65.00  

Total 10 $5,445.00 6 $350.00 16 $5,895.00 
 
Conservation 

• Painted Dog Research Trust: created power point presentation from trip to present to staff, 
board, community groups. Prepared 5 Facebook posts from the trip. 

 
Volunteers 

• 12/12 - Hosted Rhythm City Casino volunteers who set up Holiday decorations 
• 12/16 – Volunteer appreciation luncheon was cancelled due to lack of registration and will be 

rescheduled. 
• 12/17 – 10 volunteers helped at Brunch with Santa Paws 

 

Type 
Dec 2023 
Hours 

Volunteer 
# 

Adult 31.17 4 
Intern 0 0 
Junior Zoo 
Keeper 0 0 
Special Event 39.75 6 
Grand total 70.92 10 
Paid FTE/hour $18.80   
Value $1,333.30   

098



 

 
Administrative 
 

• Media – 12/19 - Interview with QC Times (Elma Gaul) about Feb. 4 Environmental Film 
Series: The woman who loved giraffes. 

 
 

December Maintenance Report:  

 

- Repaired heater in donkey/Ostrich barn. 
- Replaced intake manifold gaskets, shifter bracket on transmission, and spring on shifter handle 

on Gator #74. 
- Repaired mortar joints in Colobus. 
- Repaired one of the barns in domestic animals. 
- Installed freezer strips at Pallas cats. 
- Replaced oxygen sensor and #8 ignition coil and changed oil/filter on Truck #147. 
- Repaired wood around heater at gift shop. 
- Replaced light fixture in heated barn. 
- Repaired tuck-pointing block wall at Biodiversity. 
- Repaired window in Animal Encounters. 
- Install power steering pump, windshield wipers, reattached mirror and replaced tire on 

Suburban. 
- Replaced fuel pump, fuel filter, and air filter on golf cart #20. 
- Repair brake line, change oil/filter, and air filter on truck #146. 
- Built a scale platform for Rhino barn. 
- Put mesh up around Chicken coop. 
- Rebuilt (2) donkey feeders. 
- Fabricated a squeeze box for Primates. 
- Put up bird mesh under Giraffe feeding deck. 
- Reinforced mesh on aquariums in Reptile house. 
- Replaced cable on shift door at Colobus monkeys. 

 

 
GUEST SERVICES- Dec 2023 

 
• GIFT SHOP: 

o 2023 Wood Ornament featuring African Painted Dog, now on sale!  We sold 
6/$96 in Dec.  

o Setting up the gift shop with new merchandise.  
 

• CONCESSIONS: 

o 2024 contract done and sent to Jen 

099



 
• NZ MEMBERSHIP/ FUNBUNDLE MEMBERSHIP/ZOOSEUM SEASONAL PASS: 

o Online Membership Egift Cards- DEC/93/$8605 
o Niabi Zoo Memberships Nov-19/$2340 

New/17, Renewed/2 
o Funbundle Deposit for Nov- $3089 
o The price for the Funbundle and Funbundle Membership will be going up in early 

2024. 
o Zooseum Pass went on sale. Early Bird Price-$100 As of Jan 1, it will be $125. 
 

 
• CAROUSEL: 

o We are looking into companies that could help us replace the awning, and we 
plan to make other improvements over the off-season.  
 

• GIFT CARDS/EGIFT CARDS (GENERAL ZOO ONES): 

o DEC-24/$1455 
 

• ADOPTS: 

o DEC-9/$450 
o Revamping program on the off-season.  Which animals are available for adoption, 

perks etc…. We are considering possibly selling them in the gift shop as “ready to 
go” with a plush animal.   
 

• SCOOTERBUG (wheelchairs, ECVs, Strollers & Scooterpals): 

o N/A 
 

• PEPSI (4 vending machines) 

o Vending machines will be removed during the off season 
 

• PENNY PRESS MACHINES (2 machines/1 @ gift shop & 1- back concessions) : 

o N/A 
 

• EVENTS: 

o Updated the 2024 events/hour schedule 
 

• WEBSITE: 

o Updated with the 2024 events/hour schedule and removed giraffe feedings.  

100



 
• STAFFING/HIRING/TRAINING: 

o We are reviewing our hiring timeline, orientation, new hire paperwork, 
application, etc., so everything is ready to roll out at the beginning of 2024.  

o We will start advertising and hiring at the end of Jan- Feb.  
 

• MARKETING: 
o I will be working with Mindfire to create content to promote revenue-producing 

items/programs the zoo has to offer. We will use these all season long on social, 
emails and website.    

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

101



102



103



104



105



 

Members of the Rock Island County Forest Preserve District Executive Committee, 
please accept this report for the month of December 2023. 
 

Notes from the prior Forest Preserve Executive Committee Meeting 
Nothing to report at this time. 
 

Issues or Items noted on the agenda for the month of December 
 

Claims & Treasurer’s Disbursements  
Claims and Treasurer’s to be approved for the month are typical and generally in line 
with the current appropriated expenditures.  Claims were not fully reviewed at the time 
of this report however any flagged claims will be rectified by staff. 
 
Transfers of Appropriation  
Several transfers of appropriations were made in the General Fund, Niabi Zoo & Audit 
Fund to account for general ledgers (GL’s) being spent beyond initial appropriations at 
the midway point within the fiscal year.  In the General Fund funds were available in 
capital GL’s where equipment purchases left some unspent funds.  The Zoo Fund had to 
nearly deplete capital funds appropriated to the ongoing upgrades to the zoo’s security 
and safety systems.  A significant deficit began to accumulate in the animal 
department’s training and education and travel GL’s since no fund were initially 
appropriated and over $13,000 has been spent in those two GL’s thus far.  A minor 
adjustment was required in the Audit Fund to cover the costs of the FY 23 audit.  
Additional funds will most likely be required to cover the cost of the supplementary 
reporting required to complete the audit.   
 
Resolution(s) 
The Resolution per the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2.06, the Act requires public 
bodies as least semi-annually review the closed session minutes of the public body to 
determine if the need for confidentiality still exists or no longer require confidential 
treatment and should be made available for public inspection.   

A resolution is required to account for the receipt of funds and expenditures associated 
with the Scott County Regional Development Authority Grant.  The grant was for 
upgrades to the train auditory equipment. 

A resolution is required to account for the receipt of funds and expenditures associated 
with the Woodward Community Grant.  The grant was for animal observational and 
security equipment throughout the zoo. 

106



 

A resolution is required to account for funds to be received for claims made to the 
District’s insurance provider for incidents that occurred at Niabi Zoo revolving cars 
hitting a walk-in cooler.  Staff have begun the process of repositioning and building a 
foundation in which the new walk-in cooler will be placed.  

Discussion Items 
2024 Proposed Fees-Enclosed is a list of proposed fees for the District’s core services.  
Staff recommend several $1 increases to various golf and camping fees to assist 
offsetting the costs required to provide such services.  At this time staff do not 
recommend any increases to fees at Niabi Zoo as prior increases have resulted in flat 
and in some cases diminishing returns.  Staff evaluated comparable services within the 
community, mainly Scott County Conservation Board for camping and other local private 
and public golf courses, and the District’s fees are in line with others providing similar 
service to the community.  Staff also considered the findings from the most recent 
public input survey of the Districts services.  Programs, merchandise and any other fee 
will be examined individually by staff to determine cost to maximize revenue 
generation. 
 
Paymerang Master Services Agreement-Enclosed with this month’s meeting materials is 
a contract from Paymerang to begin providing payment automation for the Districts 
accounts payable to vendors.  Through a monthly one-time payment to Paymerang, 
Paymerang will process and pay the District’s account payable through an electronic 
fund transfer. The proposed agreement is similar in nature to that of Rock Island 
County.  A third-party processor was suggested in the Rock Island County 2021 forensic 
audit to protect the District’s bank accounts.  Treasurer Camlin and Auditor Palmer 
recommend approval. 

Reports 
 
Budget Performance Report- The FY 24 budget as of the close of business for December 
31, 2023 is enclosed for your review.  The District is now mid-way through its fiscal year 
(July 1-June 30) and the appropriated funds of the District are all in excellent to fair 
position which can be attributed to the drier weather patterns and moderate 
temperatures experienced July through October.  Also November was a better than 
average month at the golf course in terms of gross revenues received thanks to some 
above average temperatures on the first couple of weekends until temperatures came 
down to typical norms.  Per usual, additional adjustments will continue to be made as 
necessary via transfers of appropriation in order to accommodate situations that were 
unforeseen at the time of approval.  If expenditures continue as appropriated staff  do 

107



 

not expect the need to increase the appropriations of any fund other than those 
associated with grant funds to be received this fiscal year.   

Treasurer’s Report-included for your consideration.  

Auditor’s Report-included for your consideration.  

Staff Reports - December weather was fairly moderate and dry which provided folks 
opportunities to utilize trails and get some late season fishing in on Lake George until 
some light December rain and snow halted use.  The Loud Thunder archery program 
saw its numbers dwindle as hunters filled their tags or lost interest like bucks once the 
rut cycle tails off.  Park access became limited in order to prevent further damage to 
roads within Illiniwek and Loud Thunder.  Complete access will return April 1 or earlier 
depending on how quickly the ground dries out which will be dependent on the amount 
of frost that should happen to get into the ground this winter.  The golf course was 
closed but the clubhouse had a few visits from customers buying gift certificates and a 
small amount of merchandise.  The zoo sold its annual Christmas items and pushed gift 
card sales through online sales.   

The District being a seasonally heavy operation, many of the staff used some vacation 
time and made merry during holidays.  Annual equipment maintenance and other small 
projects like picnic table repair, tree pruning and hazard tree removal are being 
addressed.  Park staff will address forest management plans and trail construction at 
Amôwa as well. To get a full report on the happening and doings of staff, please see the 
remainder of staff reports. 

Langman Construction worked on the stormwater improvements at Indian Bluff.  Below 
is a picture of the pond at 18 in which material from the pond is being removed and 
embankment being cleared. 

108



 

 

Union 
No grievances were received by the District from the Union in the month of December.   
 
Misc. updates and items or highlights for the upcoming month(s) 

• Attending a meeting that discussed the possibility of a pedestrian and bike path 
on the proposed I-80 bridge.  In order for the proposal to move forward, the 
federal government is looking for local government cooperation in the 
maintenance of the path.  Staff recommend that local municipalities from 
Illinois side take the lead on that rather than the District as they are more 
positioned to meet the needs of the maintenance requirements due to the 
resources available to them. 

• Listened to presentation and received a proposal from KWQC on marketing 
opportunities through KWQC. 

• FOIA Officer for the District-annual training will be completed by the end of the 
month by the Director and Administrative Assistant or ASAP when the training is 
available. 

• Met with the Zoo Director to review further adjustments to the zoo’s proposed 
fiscal year 25 budget. 

109



 

• Updating the District’s statement of values (SOV) with IPARKS due to the 
acquisition of skid steer, gators and zoo exhibits being completed or nearly 
completed. 

• Participated in HR Source’s orientation program as the District is now a 
member.  Also worked on reviewing and adjusting job descriptions to be 
submitted to HR Source who will use these in their compensation benchmarking 
review. 

• Submitted quarterly grant reports for Illinois Public Museum Grant and 
Recreation Trail Program Grant.  

• Signed Certificates of Status of Exempt Property for the District and returned 
them to the Supervisor of Assessments Office.   

• Participated in the IPRA monthly webinar. 
• The State Alcohol Permit for Indian Bluff Golf Course is in the process of being 

completed and will be submitted once staff has completed application process. 
• State Campground Licenses will be submitted for Illiniwek and Loud Thunder 

campgrounds by the end of the month. 
• Filed Illinois Worker’s Compensation Commission Public Employer’s Election to 

Self-Ensure form. 
• Completed the quarterly PCI scans and certifications. 
• Updating the websites for all preserves with District with any new 2024 

information. 
• Registered to keep the District’s System for Award Management (SAM) and 

other federal requirement in tact for potential grant opportunities for another 
12 months 

• Staff met with Mindfire and began a high-level review of the data collected from 
the focus group and public survey conducted this fall.  The survey had nearly 
2000 participants which was more than double than the prior survey conducted 
in 2017.  A full report and presentation will be provided in the upcoming 
months. 

• Continue to promote #keepqcoutdoorsy donations.  Several emails were sent 
out in the month of December. Received nearly $6,000 from the Alfaretta Young 
Tua Foundation was one of the highlights. 

• Continue updating the District’s Asset listing and development of a capital 
improvement plan.  Once complete, will update the five-year budget forecast. 

• Perform necessary RecTrac Software maintenance and developing procedure of 
its use. 

• Preparation of equipment bids for new vehicles for Indian Bluff and Niabi Zoo 
will continue.  These items are in the FY 24 budget however due to manufacture 
delays and lack of fleet pricing, getting these ordered now has become difficult. 

110



 

• Work on the lift station for the Illiniwek Restroom continues.  Staff have been 
having discussions with Rapid City on an intergovernmental agreement for 
sewer billing.  Langman will begin working on the Illiniwek restroom demolition 
and site preparation in late January to early February.   

• Staff will be looking to fill the vacant Assistant Ranger Position at Loud Thunder 
in January. This position has been vacant since October of 2023.   

• General new year office cleaning and maintenance.   
• Zoo Foundation meeting scheduled for January 15th.   
• IACD Conference in Utica, which the District has been an agency sponsor and 

coordinator is scheduled for February 8 & 9.   
• King Holiday January 15. 
• Next meeting is Tuesday, February 13, 2024 

 
Submitted this 3rd day of January, 2024 

Jeffrey Craver 

111


	2023 12-12 Committee minutes.pdf
	FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES
	DECEMBER 12, 2023




